
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO 

ENERGY, MINERALS AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION 

IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING 
CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION 
DIVISION FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
CONSIDERING: 

APPLICATION OF MERIDIAN OIL, INC. 

CASE NO. 11 ,042 

ORIGINAL 

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS 

EXAMINER HEARING 

BEFORE: MICHAEL E. STOGNER, Hearing Examiner 

August 4, 1994 

Santa Fe, New Mexico 

- 2 

This matter came on f o r hearing before the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n on Thursday, August 4, 1994, a t 

Morgan H a l l , State Land O f f i c e B u i l d i n g , 310 Old Santa Fe 

T r a i l , Santa Fe, New Mexico, before Steven T. Brenner, 

C e r t i f i e d Court Reporter No. 7 f o r the State of New Mexico. 

* * * 
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Attorney a t Law 
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KELLAHIN & KELLAHIN 
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P.O. Box 22 65 
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By: W. THOMAS KELLAHIN 

ALSO PRESENT: 

DONALD R. CANDELARIA 
PAUL M. CANDELARIA 

FRANK CHAVEZ 
New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n 
Aztec O f f i c e 
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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

11:26 a.m.: 

EXAMINER STOGNER: At t h i s time I ' l l c a l l Case 

Number 11,042, which i s the A p p l i c a t i o n of Meridian, I n c . , 

f o r s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l , Rio A r r i b a County, New Mexico. 

At t h i s time I ' l l c a l l f o r appearances. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom K e l l a h i n of 

the Santa Fe law f i r m of K e l l a h i n and K e l l a h i n , appearing 

on behalf of the Applicant, and I have th r e e witnesses t o 

be sworn. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Are there any other 

appearances? 

Yes, s i r ? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: We're — We want t o voice 

our o b j e c t i o n s . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, I ' l l t e l l you what, I'm 

going t o i n v i t e you gentlemen — Why don't you come forward 

and occupy t h i s t a b l e , and t h a t way y o u ' l l be provided 

copies of the e x h i b i t s and y o u ' l l be accessible t o examine 

them a t your convenience and comfort. 

And t h i s i s somewhat of an i n f o r m a l type of a 

session, but I assume t h a t you're not represented by 

counsel; i s t h a t correct? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: No. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. Why don't you s t a t e 
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your name and e s s e n t i a l l y your a f f i l i a t i o n i n t h i s matter. 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: My name i s Paul M. 

Candelaria from Farmington, New Mexico, and we own land 

w i t h i n t h a t area of the proposed w e l l s i t e , and we also 

h o l d the grazing lease t o t h a t p a r t i c u l a r p r o p e r t y t h a t the 

proposed w e l l i s on. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: When you say landowner, are 

you r e f e r r i n g t o the surface or the mineral r i g h t s ? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: The surface. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: The surface. And the 

grazing — I assume you're — the land you don't own, 

you're r e f e r r i n g t o the f e d e r a l or s t a t e grazing? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: And i s t h a t f e d e r a l ? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: I t ' s a f e d e r a l lease. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: And t h a t would be w i t h the 

BLM? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: As opposed t o the Forest 

Service or some other e n t i t y ? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: No, i t ' s BLM. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: And do you have somebody else 

w i t h you? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: Yes, I do. This i s my 

brot h e r . 
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MR. DONALD CANDELARIA: Donald R. Candelaria. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I assume you're a landowner 

and owner of the grazing r i g h t s also? 

MR. DONALD CANDELARIA: Yeah, we are. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Are you a l l a partnership? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: Yeah. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: To make i t more convenient, i f 

y o u ' l l discuss amongst yourselves when you do ask a 

question or present something, perhaps maybe one of you f o r 

que s t i o n i n g — 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: That would be f i n e . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — but t h a t ' s not t o say t h a t 

both of you aren't welcome t o ; i t j u s t might — I t w i l l 

make h i s j o b a l i t t l e b i t more easier and such as t h a t . 

What I w i l l do i s have Meridian, the A p p l i c a n t i n 

t h i s matter, present t h e i r evidence and t h e i r witnesses 

f i r s t . 

A f t e r Mr. K e l l a h i n questions the witness, then 

you w i l l be allowed t o ask any questions. Please keep i n 

mind t o make i t p e r t i n e n t t o the i n d i v i d u a l ' s e x p e r t i s e , 

whether i t be land, geology or engineering. But f e e l f r e e 

t o ask a question. At which time, then, I w i l l ask some 

questions of t h a t witness. 

And subsequent t o Meridian's p r e s e n t a t i o n you 

w i l l be allowed, or both of you w i l l be allowed t o present 
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any type of evidence or supporting or whatever the case may 

be t h a t you would l i k e . 

And a t t h a t time, a t the — Also, Mr. K e l l a h i n 

w i l l be able t o ask you some questions of t h a t , so be 

prepared f o r t h a t , or myself, t o make t h i n g s c l e a r e r . 

At which time, a t the conclusions of t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r case, y o u ' l l be given the o p p o r t u n i t y t o 

f i n a l i z e i t by making a statement, as w i l l Mr. Carr — I'm 

so r r y , Mr. K e l l a h i n , my apologies. 

Today w i l l not be — A de c i s i o n w i l l not be made. 

What mine i s i s a recommendation t o the D i v i s i o n D i r e c t o r , 

as t o the outcome of the case. And so the case w i l l be 

taken under advisement i f t h a t so applies a f t e r today's 

proceedings, a t which time the matter — I w i l l present i n 

the form of a w r i t t e n recommendation t o Mr. LeMay f o r h i s 

sig n a t u r e f o r an order. And he has — he can e i t h e r change 

t h a t or take my recommendations and f e e l f r e e t o do what he 

wants t o w i t h them. 

At which time, then, you w i l l be given a copy of 

the f i n a l order. And then there's other proceedings t h a t 

you can take f o r t h of t h a t i f you agree or disagree, as 

Meridian i s . 

So are there any questions w i t h t he proceedings, 

gentlemen? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: Just — You have our l e t t e r 
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t h a t we wrote t o Mr. LeMay; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: That i s a l e t t e r dated J u l y 

11th — I t h i n k we received i t J u l y 14th, Mr. LeMay — and 

i t ' s signed by both of you gentlemen; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: Yes, i t was. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: And t h i s l e t t e r i s t o voice 

your o b j e c t i o n and you o u t l i n e d i t i n f i v e d i f f e r e n t ways, 

and have given a phone number. 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , were you provided a copy of t h a t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r , I have not seen the 

l e t t e r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: You have not seen i t . 

Do you by chance have copies, s i r ? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: I have my copy. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: You have your copy. 

Okay, I t e l l you what, l e t ' s do t h i s a t t h i s 

time: Let's swear the witnesses i n or — W i l l each of you 

be g i v i n g testimony today? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: Just v o i c i n g our 

o b j e c t i o n s . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — o b j e c t i o n . Okay, i f a t any 

time we f e e l t h a t we need t o swear you i n as a witness, we 

w i l l a t t h a t time. But a t t h i s p o i n t I don't see i t 

necessary. So I'm going t o ask the th r e e witnesses f o r 

Meridian t o stand and be sworn. You gentlemen can be 
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seated. 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, Mr. K e l l a h i n , i f you 

f e e l i t necessary f o r me t o get a copy, I w i l l take a shor t 

recess and do t h a t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: May we take a moment and make some 

copies, Mr. Examiner? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, l e t ' s take a fi v e - m i n u t e 

recess a t t h i s time. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 11:31 a.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 11:40 a.m.) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Hearing w i l l come t o order. 

With t h i s , I assume t h a t Meridian has been 

provided — Do we need t o w a i t f o r your brother? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , l e t ' s do t h a t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, so r r y about t h a t . We're 

o f f the record. 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Hearing w i l l come t o order. 

I assume a t t h i s time t h a t you have been provided 

copies, Mr. K e l l a h i n , of the J u l y - l l t h - d a t e d l e t t e r from 

Mr. Candelaria t o Mr. B i l l LeMay, the D i v i s i o n D i r e c t o r ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , I have a copy of t h a t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: And have you provided Mr. Paul 

Candelaria and Donald Candelaria copies of your e x h i b i t s 
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t h a t you are presenting today? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , we have d i s t r i b u t e d t o 

the attendants i n the hearing room copies of the Meridian 

e x h i b i t book. I've given Mr. Candelaria a copy of t h a t 

book, Mr. Chavez has a copy, and i t ' s been d i s t r i b u t e d t o 

you and the witness, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. With t h a t , then, please 

continue w i t h your proceeding. 

MR. KELLAHIN: S i r , we're going t o present t o you 

thre e witnesses. 

Mr. Van Goebel i s a petroleum landman. This i s 

w i t h i n h i s area. H e ' l l describe f o r you the ownership and 

h i s v a rious e f f o r t s t o get the necessary approvals f o r the 

dis p o s a l w e l l . 

Mr. B i l l Hobbs i s a petroleum g e o l o g i s t . He's 

going t o provide you the geologic s e t t i n g i n which Meridian 

proposes t o dispose of produced water from v a r i o u s sources, 

taken from Dakota, Mesaverde, coal gas and place i t i n t h i s 

d i s p o s a l w e l l i n the Entrada formation a t a depth i n t h i s 

area of something i n excess of 8400 f e e t . 

The t h i r d witness i s Mr. Brian A u l t . Mr. A u l t i s 

a petroleum engineer. He and others have prepared the 

C-108, and we w i l l go through t h a t process. H e ' l l describe 

f o r you h i s proposal f o r the d r i l l i n g . 

This i s a new w e l l , as opposed t o the conversion 
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of an e x i s t i n g w e l l . This i s a new w e l l t o be d r i l l e d from 

the surface t o the disposal i n t e r v a l , and h e ' l l describe 

t h a t process f o r you. 

At t h i s p o i n t , l e t me d i r e c t my questions t o Mr. 

Van Goebel. 

VAN GOEBEL. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. For the record, s i r , would you please s t a t e your 

name and occupation? 

A. My name i s Van Goebel. I'm a landman f o r 

Meridian O i l . 

Q. And where do you res i d e , s i r ? 

A. Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q. On p r i o r occasions have you t e s t i f i e d as a 

petroleum landman before the Divis i o n ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. I s t h i s proposed disposal w e l l , the J i l l s o n 

Federal Disposal Well Number 1, w i t h i n your area of 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y as a landman? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. F i r s t of a l l , t e l l us how t o s p e l l i t . I t h i n k 

we've s p e l l e d i t two d i f f e r e n t ways. 
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A. Yes, we d i d . I n some of the correspondence t h a t 

went out t o the s t a t e and t o the o f f s e t owners an 

a d d i t i o n a l " i " popped up. I t i s s p i l l e d J - i - l - l - s - o - n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What i s the proposed l o c a t i o n f o r the 

w e l l , Mr. Goebel? 

A. The w e l l w i l l be located i n Section 8, Township 

24 North, Range 3, i n the southeast of the northwest 

q u a r t e r . 

Q. Have you made y o u r s e l f f a m i l i a r w i t h t he 

ownership w i t h i n Section 8? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you assisted the t e c h n i c a l people i n 

i d e n t i f y i n g these sources of fr e s h water w i t h i n the area of 

review? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And have you made contact and discussions w i t h 

the Bureau of Land Management concerning t h i s proposed 

wel l ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Goebel as a 

petroleum landman. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Goebel i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) Let's s t a r t , s i r , by l o o k i n g 

a t how you've organized the e x h i b i t book. T e l l us how t h a t 

has been organized. 
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A. E x h i b i t 1 contains the C-108 A p p l i c a t i o n and 

correspondence w i t h the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . I t also 

contains copies of the newspaper n o t i c e and l e t t e r s t o the 

o f f s e t operator and surface owner of the water w e l l . 

Q. Let's t u r n — We'll come back t o t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n . Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t Tab Number 2, and look 

a t the f i r s t d i s p l a y behind t h a t e x h i b i t tab. I d e n t i f y f o r 

us what you've shown. 

A. Okay, under E x h i b i t 2, the f i r s t p l a t i s a 

l o c a t o r p l a t showing the l o c a t i o n of the p r o j e c t area i n 

the State of New Mexico. 

Q. Where i s i t ? 

A. Okay, i t ' s located f i v e miles o f f of 371, which 

runs between Highway 44 t o Dulce. 

Q. You're j u s t n o r t h and west of L i n d r i t h ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Turn past t h a t d i s p l a y , and l e t ' s 

look a t the next d i s p l a y . 

A. The next p l a t i s a surface ownership p l a t 

i n d i c a t i n g p r i v a t e surface ownership of Donald and Paul 

Candelaria, and the green i n d i c a t e s f e d e r a l surface, Bureau 

of Land Management. 

Also i n d i c a t e d i s the l o c a t i o n of the J i l l s o n 

d i s p o s a l w e l l and the Candelarias' water w e l l . 

Q. Upon what in f o r m a t i o n d i d you base your 
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conclusion, as shown on t h i s display? 

A. Okay, we d i d a records check of the surface t o 

determine who was the owners, we contacted the State of New 

Mexico Water D i v i s i o n t o determine i f they had any records 

of water w e l l s i n the area. They do not show any i n t h e i r 

records. 

We t h e r e f o r e had our production foreman have 

switchers do a ph y s i c a l check of the area, and they 

discovered t h i s p a r t i c u l a r water w e l l i n the area where we 

plan t o do the disposal w e l l . 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the OCD concept of the 

h a l f - m i l e - r a d i u s area of review? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Wit h i n t h a t area, d i d you f i n d , e i t h e r by 

searching the State Engineer's records or making surface 

i n s p e c t i o n s , any other freshwater source w i t h i n t h a t area, 

other than the w e l l you've shown on t h i s d isplay? 

A. We found no other water w e l l s w i t h i n t h a t r a d i u s . 

Q. To whom do you a t t r i b u t e ownership of t h a t f r e s h 

water w e l l , based upon your search? 

A. From our record check, Paul and Donald Candelaria 

are the owners of t h a t water w e l l . 

Q. Okay. Do they have any tenants or other 

occupants of the property i n which the water w e l l serves? 

A. I n our p r e l i m i n a r y work i n p u t t i n g t o g e t h e r our 
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C-108 form, our production foreman contacted Mr. Candelaria 

and he advised that Mr. Shipley was leasing th a t surface 

from him. 

Q. Based upon your investigation of a l l sources, 

including contacts with Mr. Candelaria, did you determine 

i f there were any other freshwater sources w i t h i n the h a l f -

mile radius? 

A. No, we found no others. 

Q. This i s the only one. 

A. Yes. 

Q. The proposed well location i s located on BLM 

lands? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you contacted various representatives of the 

Bureau of Land Management to determine what, i f any, 

procedures they would require of you for the permitting and 

approval of t h i s well as a disposal well? 

A. Yes, I did. When we sent our notice l e t t e r out 

to Mr. Candelaria, he telephoned me and advised me that he 

objected to our location and that for a period of two years 

they had been working with the BLM on a p o t e n t i a l land 

swap. 

Upon learning that, I did contact the Farmington 

BLM o f f i c e , talked to t h e i r representatives, and they did 

confirm that they were t a l k i n g with Candelaria on a land 
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swap, but i t had not been determined to follow through on 

that project. 

Q. Based upon your study, including the 

conversations with the Bureau of Land Management, what did 

you u l t i m a t e l y conclude to be the ownership of the 

minerals, as well as control of the surface with regards t o 

the permitting of your disposal well? 

A. In conversations with both the Albuquerque BLM 

o f f i c e and the Farmington BLM o f f i c e , they have confirmed 

that the Minerals, as well as the surface, are s t i l l owned 

by the federal government and are under t h e i r j u r i s d i c t i o n . 

Q. Did you have any indica t i o n , d i r e c t i o n or other 

requirements made of you by the BLM that you must obtain 

the concurrence or consent of the Candelarias f o r locating 

t h i s well where you propose to locate i t ? 

A. No, they did not. 

Q. Let's turn now to the l e t t e r following that 

i l l u s t r a t i o n , which i s the next item behind t h i s e x h i b i t 

tab. Were you involved i n having t h i s l e t t e r generated? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. Give us the facts and circumstances by which you 

understand t h i s l e t t e r was issued. 

A. When I learned of the p o t e n t i a l surface issues, I 

talked to both the Farmington and the Albuquerque BLM 

of f i c e s , and they had wr i t t e n t h i s l e t t e r t o Mr. Catanach 
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t o c l a r i f y t h e i r p o s i t i o n i n regard t o the surface 

ownership as w e l l as the minerals and t h a t they were aware 

of our proposed disposal w e l l p r o j e c t . 

Q. As p a r t of the p e r m i t t i n g of the d i s p o s a l w e l l on 

f e d e r a l p r o p e r t i e s , d i d Meridian f i l e an APD t o cause t h i s 

w e l l t o be d r i l l e d ? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. And where d i d you f i l e t h a t APD? 

A. We f i l e d i t w i t h the Albuquerque BLM o f f i c e . 

Q. And i s t h a t the appropriate place, i n your 

o p i n i o n , i n which t o f i l e t h a t APD? 

A. Yes, w i t h the r e s t r u c t u r i n g of the BLM. The 

Farmington o f f i c e a t one time handled Rio A r r i b a County, 

but they have r e d i v i d e d the d i s t r i c t s and the Albuquerque 

o f f i c e now has j u r i s d i c t i o n over t h i s area. 

Q. As p a r t of t h a t f i l i n g process, d i d you n o t i f y 

the BLM of Meridian's i n t e n t t o u t i l i z e t h i s w e l l b o r e f o r 

d i s p o s a l purposes of water produced from areas o f f of what 

would otherwise be the o i l and gas lease t h a t a f f e c t e d t h i s 

p o r t i o n of the f e d e r a l lands i n Section 8? 

A. Yes, we d i d , we noted t h a t i n our APD. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . As a landman, what do you understand 

t o be the use t o which t h i s w e l l i s going t o be put? 

A. That under the r e g u l a t i o n s and approval of the 

s t a t e and the BLM, t h a t we would be allowed t o use t h i s as 
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a d i s p o s a l w e l l . 

Q. What i s the status of the BLM's approval of your 

APD f o r t h i s well? 

A. They are a t t h i s time c u r r e n t l y r e v i e w i n g our 

APD. 

Q. Are you personally f a m i l i a r w i t h the nature and 

the character of the o b j e c t i o n r a i s e d by the Candelarias t o 

the use of t h i s w e l l f o r disposal? 

A. Yes, as they expressed i t t o me. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Describe f o r us when and under what 

circumstances you had your f i r s t contact w i t h the 

Candelarias concerning any o b j e c t i o n they had t o your w e l l . 

A. When we sent out the i n i t i a l n o t i c e l e t t e r , we 

sent i t out c e r t i f i e d m a i l . That was sent out June 7 t h . 

On June 8th, Paul Candelaria c a l l e d me and we had 

a telephone conversation where he made me aware of h i s 

concerns. 

Q. What d i d Mr. Candelaria express t o you t o be h i s 

concerns a t t h a t point? 

A. At t h a t time he expressed h i s concerns i n t h a t he 

was going through the procedure, attempting t o c a r r y out 

t h i s land swap, and he f e l t t h a t our operations, i f he was 

successful, would i n t e r f e r e w i t h h i s surface use. 

Q. Are there other o i l and gas operations t a k i n g 

place i n Section 8, both on the f e d e r a l and nonfederal 
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lands? 

A. Yes, there are. 

Q. I s there a p l a t t h a t shows the extent t o which 

Section 8 has been u t i l i z e d ? 

A. Under E x h i b i t 3 we have a p l a t s p o t t i n g w e l l 

l o c a t i o n s i n Section 8, as w e l l as the area surrounding 

Section 8. 

Q. I n t h i s f i r s t conversation w i t h Mr. Candelaria, 

d i d he express t o you any concerns, r e s e r v a t i o n s or 

problems i n r e l a t i o n t o any freshwater w e l l he may have i n 

t h i s v i c i n i t y ? 

A. Not a t t h a t time. 

Q. Subsequently, d i d he? 

A. Not t o me. 

Q. Okay. Did you have any other conversations w i t h 

Mr. Candelaria? 

A. No. 

Q. When we look a t the p l a t behind E x h i b i t Tab 

Number 3, i d e n t i f y f o r the record what we're l o o k i n g a t , 

Mr. Goebel. 

A. This i s a land p l a t showing the p r o j e c t area. We 

have spotted i n the southeast of the northwest q u a r t e r of 

Section 8 where the J i l l s o n disposal w e l l p r o j e c t w i l l be 

placed. 

I n the southeast quarter of Section 8 we have 
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spotted Mr. Candelaria's water w e l l . 

The green c i r c l e i s the h a l f - m i l e r a d i u s around 

the d i s p o s a l w e l l . The dotted square i s the area t h a t we 

n o t i f i e d o f f s e t operators. And then the l a r g e d o t t e d 

c i r c l e i n d i c a t e s a two-mile radius of w e l l s l o c a t e d w i t h i n 

t h a t area. 

Q. You've spotted a l l w e l l s t h a t , based upon your 

records and the search of the other records, are a l l w e l l s 

t h a t have been d r i l l e d w i t h i n the two-mile-radius area? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you have an i l l u s t r a t i o n or a 

survey or other d e s c r i p t i o n s t o show us the r e l a t i o n s h i p of 

your proposed disposal w e l l t o the Candelarias' freshwater 

w e l l ? 

A. Under E x h i b i t 4 we had a survey done, and t h i s i s 

a survey p l a t which i n d i c a t e s the distance of the water 

w e l l from our proposed disposal w e l l . That would be the 

f i r s t p l a t . 

Q. Neale Edwards has c e r t i f i e d t h i s i s a 

p r o f e s s i o n a l land surveyor? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Edwards ge n e r a l l y does work f o r Meridian? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And have you found h i s work t o be accurate and 

r e l i a b l e ? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. And do you d r i l l and locate w e l l s based upon h i s 

surveys? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How f a r does he demonstrate your d i s p o s a l w e l l t o 

be on a d i r e c t l i n e from the — what i s i d e n t i f i e d as the 

" E x i s t i n g Ranch Water Well"? That's the Candelaria's w e l l 

t h a t the p r o p e r t i e s lease t o the Shipp lease? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay, how far? 

A. He's i n d i c a t i n g t h a t i t ' s 2674.02 f e e t . 

Q. As p a r t of your search and review of the records 

and i n f o r m a t i o n , d i d you f i n d any other d i s p o s a l w e l l s 

being u t i l i z e d by e i t h e r Meridian or any other company i n 

t h i s area? 

A. We found i n the area one other d i s p o s a l w e l l 

operated by Mobil. 

Q. Do you have a survey p l a t from Mr. Edwards t h a t 

shows us the distance from the freshwater w e l l t h a t the 

Candelarias own t o Mobil's disposal well? 

A. Yes, the second page under t h a t e x h i b i t i s a 

survey p l a t showing the distance from the water w e l l t o 

Mobil's d i s p o s a l w e l l . 

Q. Apart from your n o t i f i c a t i o n s t o the Candelarias, 

what other n o t i f i c a t i o n s , i f any, d i d you cause t o be made? 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
(505) 984-2244 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

22 

A. We also gave notice to the o f f s e t operator, as 

shown under the Exhibit 3, under that square. I n the south 

part of Section 5 there's an of f s e t operator, Carolyn Clark 

Wiggins O i l Properties. We sent them n o t i f i c a t i o n of our 

projects. 

Q. What, i f any, communications or telephone 

i n q u i r i e s , conversations, did you have with Wiggins 

concerning your request? 

A. They sent us a l e t t e r back in d i c a t i n g they had no 

objection to our project. 

Q. Let me show you my c e r t i f i c a t e of mailing i n 

compliance with notice obligations of the Division and have 

you look at the copy appended to the c e r t i f i c a t e and have 

you t e l l me whether or not we have n o t i f i e d a l l the 

appropriate parties of your Application. 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. Let's go back to Exhibit 1 now. The f i r s t part 

of Exhibit 1 i s the Application for Administrative 

Approval, and attaching to i t i s the advertisement, 

n o t i f i c a t i o n s , proof of mailings, and then as you continue 

your way through there you're going to f i n d a well-staking 

worksheet. Are you with me? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I t ' s about three pages ahead of the f i r s t green 

sheet th a t separates the portions of the e x h i b i t . 
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A. Yeah, I have the — 

Q. The J i l l s o n Federal S a l t Water 1 says "Well 

Staking Worksheet". What i s intended t o be the importance 

of t h i s ? 

A. Okay, t h i s i s a worksheet used by Meridian. When 

they go out t o stake a w e l l they have various p a r t i e s go 

out on the s t a k i n g t h a t are involved w i t h the p a r t i c u l a r 

p r o j e c t and have them sign o f f t o i n d i c a t e t h a t they were 

a t the p r o j e c t s i t e . 

Y o u ' l l n o t i c e t h a t the Bureau of Land Management 

r e p r e s e n t a t i v e , Pat Hester, was out there May 12th, 1994, 

and was aware of our p r o j e c t and was ev a l u a t i n g the 

l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. Behind t h a t worksheet, what i s the next 

display? 

A. Next d i s p l a y i s a topo map i n d i c a t i n g the road 

i n t o our proposed disposal w e l l . 

Q. Okay, and a f t e r t h a t i s the wellbore schematic 

f o r the disposal well? 

A. Yes. 

Q. We have the green sheet, and then we're l o o k i n g 

a t the C-108 information? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s t h i s the C-108 i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t you 

d i s t r i b u t e d t o the BLM and t o the Candelarias and t o 
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Wiggins when you sent your m a i l i n g as you've described t o 

us? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. Goebel, Mr. Examiner. 

We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of the i n f o r m a t i o n 

behind E x h i b i t Tabs 1, 2, 3 and 4. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t s 1, 2, 3 and 4 w i l l be 

admitted i n t o evidence a t t h i s time. 

Thank you, Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

Before I open up the questions, Mr. Candelaria, 

I ' d l i k e t o ask Mr. Goebel something. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. Do you have a copy of the APD t h a t was submitted 

t o the BLM? 

A. I would have t o look. I t h i n k I may have brought 

i t . 

Q. Okay. Well, l e t me rephrase t h a t . I s i t 

included i n the — today's e x h i b i t s ? 

A. I t i s not included i n the book, no. 

Q. I t was not included i n the book? 

Now, you said on there t h a t the APD inclu d e d a 

statement of what waters were t o be or what leases the 

waters were from t h a t were t o be disposed of? 
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A. There i s a statement on the APD t h a t water would 

be brought i n from other w e l l s i n the area. 

Q. Okay. I s a statement l i k e t h a t included i n those 

e x h i b i t s today? 

A. No, i t i s not. I t ' s on the APD. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. K e l l a h i n , could I have you 

subsequent t o today's hearing submit a copy of t h a t APD and 

the statement i f i t ' s separate? I t h i n k a l l I need w i l l be 

the f e d e r a l form. 

I can't remember the f e d e r a l form number, but I 

t h i n k you know what I'm t a l k i n g about. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , we have i t here 

somewhere. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: And I don't need a l l the 

attachments l i k e the ar c h e o l o g i c a l s i t e or a l o t of the 

other t h i n g s t h a t the BLM — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , w e ' l l provide t h a t t o 

you, Mr. Stogner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, and i f you have i t here 

w i t h you today, we can even take a l i t t l e recess here a f t e r 

a w h i l e and make copies of i t . 

Before I ask any other questions I w i l l open i t 

up a t t h i s time t o the Candelarias. 

Do you have a question of t h i s witness a t t h i s 

time? 
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CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: 

Q. Well, f i r s t of a l l , I ' d l i k e t o r e s p e c t f u l l y 

disagree w i t h you t h a t I d i d not voice my concerns about 

water contamination the day I had t h a t phone c a l l w i t h you, 

because I d i d . Okay? But t h a t ' s past. 

But second of a l l , do you r e a l i z e t h a t there's 

two other water w e l l s besides t h a t one i n the general area? 

A. Not — We were not aware of one i n your v i c i n i t y 

of the h a l f - m i l e c i r c l e . 

Q. Nobody bothered t o ask us before you guys made 

your A p p l i c a t i o n s and whatever else you made. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I take i t , Mr. Candelaria, 

t h a t you're aware of some other water w e l l s out there? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: Yes, there i s . We have two 

other water w e l l s w i t h i n a mil e of t h a t p a r t i c u l a r s i t e . 

The one i s r i g h t , oh, 150 t o 200 f e e t from the one t h a t 

we're t a l k i n g about i n Section 8. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, we're g e t t i n g near 

some — We're g e t t i n g near where w e ' l l need t o probably 

swear you i n . 

But i f y o u ' l l r e f e r t o t h a t second page map of 

E x h i b i t Number 2 — t h a t ' s the p r e t t y c o l o r f u l one — 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: — the two other water w e l l s 
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t h a t you r e f e r r e d t o , would they be included i n t h i s map or 

t h a t p o r t i o n of t h i s map? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: One of them would be, yes, 

s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: One of them would be. And 

there's another one w i t h i n a mil e , you say? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: The other one i s i n Section 

— I t would be i n the southeast quarter of Section 9 th e r e . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, Mr. K e l l a h i n , i t would 

appear t h a t there might be some more review or research 

whether t h e r e are or are not some water w e l l s t h a t need t o 

be included i n your C-108. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I don't want t o confuse the 

process, and perhaps we should w a i t f o r Mr. Candelaria t o 

t e s t i f y and t e l l us h i s i n f o r m a t i o n . 

The i n f o r m a t i o n from the State Engineer's O f f i c e 

shows no r e p o r t by Mr. Candelaria f o r any w e l l , and so i n 

an abundance of caution we sent our f i e l d people out i n 

pumpers searching the neighborhood f o r w e l l s , and t h i s i s 

the only one they could f i n d . I f there are oth e r s , we're 

happy t o look again. I f h e ' l l a i d us w i t h some 

i n f o r m a t i o n , t h a t might expedite the process. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, w i t h t h a t — 

THE WITNESS: May I speak? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, Mr. Goebel, why don't 
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you respond t o h i s questions or — up t h i s p o i n t then. 

THE WITNESS: What I ' d l i k e t o c l a r i f y i s t h a t — 

w i t h i n — when we went our h a l f - m i l e radius i n order t o 

look f o r water w e l l s f o r the p r o j e c t , we only spotted those 

water w e l l s t h a t would f a l l w i t h i n t h a t . We d i d f i n d water 

w e l l s , some of them over two miles away, but we d i d not do 

t h a t — or work w i t h those w e l l s , because they d i d not f a l l 

w i t h i n the h a l f - m i l e c i r c l e . 

MR. DONALD CANDELARIA: There's a pumphouse 

th e r e , so you d i d n ' t spot t h a t w e l l . 

THE WITNESS: Well, we would only spot the one 

t h a t f e l l w i t h i n t h a t h a l f - m i l e c i r c l e . 

MR. DONALD CANDELARIA: The one pumps the water 

i n t o the r e s e r v o i r . But there's another pump t h a t pumps 

water i n t o the house. 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: Mr. Examiner, the whole 

t h i n g i s , i s t h a t I t h i n k t h a t Meridian O i l was very, very 

d e r e l i c t i n t h e i r process, and they should have contacted 

the Candelarias, t h a t Meridian O i l i s very, very w e l l aware 

of who owns t h a t property there. I t ' s not l i k e they j u s t 

bought i t yesterday. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, l e t ' s go on w i t h t he 

questions a t hand, then w e ' l l deal w i t h t h i s issue. I'm 

going t o assume t h a t you probably have a map or some 

e x h i b i t s l a t e r on t h a t y o u ' l l present. 
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So i f you have any questions of t h i s witness, you 

may continue. 

Q. (By Mr. Paul Candelaria) Well, I ' l l j u s t — When 

you contacted BLM, BLM d i d not make you aware of the f a c t 

t h a t we were i n a land exchange; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. They i n d i c a t e d t o me t h a t f o r a p e r i o d of two 

years they have been t a l k i n g t o you about a land exchange. 

They i n d i c a t e d t h a t they have not made a f i n a l d e c i s i o n t o 

do t h a t . 

I t ' s my understanding now t h a t they were w a i t i n g 

f o r a p p r a i s a l s on p r o p e r t i e s t o see i f they would do the 

land exchange. They were not happy w i t h the a p p r a i s a l s , 

and i t ' s my understanding now t h a t the Farmington o f f i c e i s 

backing o f f and t h a t i t w i l l be deferred t o the Albuquerque 

o f f i c e and t h a t they had i n d i c a t e d t o me t h a t you were now 

maybe l o o k i n g a t purchasing the property. 

MR. DONALD CANDELARIA: There's some t r u t h t o 

t h a t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any other questions? 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , do you have any r e d i r e c t ? 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Goebel, d i d the BLM i n d i c a t e t o you t h a t they 

would delay, postpone or otherwise not process Meridian's 

APD because of the p o s s i b i l i t y of a land exchange w i t h the 
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Candelarias? 

A. No, they t o l d me t h a t i t was t h e i r p o s i t i o n t h a t 

the f e d e r a l government s t i l l owned the surface and the 

minerals and t h a t they would work w i t h us under our o i l and 

gas lease as the mineral owner and work w i t h us on the 

di s p o s a l w e l l p r o j e c t . 

They also i n d i c a t e d t o me t h a t i f they were t o do 

a land swap or s e l l t h a t f e d e r a l acreage, they would 

c o n d i t i o n a l l y s e l l i t w i t h the understanding t h a t t he new 

surface owner would respect a l l f a c i l i t i e s and operations 

c u r r e n t l y i n existence. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I have found the APD 

t h a t was u t i l i z e d by Meridian w i t h the BLM, and the 

attachments i n t h a t APD t h a t make reference t o the o f f -

lease water d i s p o s a l . 

For purposes of the record, I ' d l i k e t o show t h i s 

t o t he witness, have him auth e n t i c a t e i t , i n t r o d u c e i t as 

an e x h i b i t , and then w e ' l l subsequently make more copies. 

But i t goes t o the question t h a t you've asked. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. Mr. Goebel, i s i t your understanding t h a t 

Meridian and only Meridian w i l l be u t i l i z i n g t h i s w e l l f o r 

d i s p o s a l of produced water, or w i l l i t be c l a s s i f i e d as a 
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commercial d i s p o s a l well? 

A. I t w i l l not be a commercial w e l l ; i t w i l l be used 

f o r our operations. 

Q. Okay, j u s t f o r Meridian's operations. 

Do you know roughly how many other leases are 

involved? 

A. Well, i t would be — The reason we've located 

here i s t h a t i t ' s s t r a t e g i c a l l y located f o r our operations, 

also provides all-weather f a c i l i t i e s i n t h a t we would have 

w i n t e r access w i t h minimum problems. We would be b r i n g i n g 

water i n from our — mainly the f e d e r a l leases i n the area, 

the w e l l s t h a t we operate i n the area. 

Q. Would there be waters — S t r i k e t h a t , I'm not 

going t o ask t h a t question. 

I s i t your understanding, when you f i l e d the APD, 

t h a t t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , c l a s s i f i e d as a s a l t w a t e r 

d i s p o s a l w e l l , would be covered under the f e d e r a l bond t h a t 

I'm assuming Meridian has w i t h the BLM? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And t h a t i s the staked l o c a t i o n , 2 305 from the 

no r t h , 2415 from the west? 

A. Yeah, you're looking a t the survey p l a t ? 

Q. And your w e l l data i n f o r m a t i o n — 

A. Yeah. 

Q. — and the APD. 
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A. Yes. 

Q. And t h a t has been approved — Well, where d i d you 

say the APD was a t t h i s time? 

A. The BLM has the APD, and they are processing i t 

now. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I f there are no other 

questions of t h i s witness, he may be excused. 

Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l i t t l e housekeeping t o do here, 

Mr. Examiner. May the witness a u t h e n t i c a t e the — Do you 

want t h a t p a r t of the record, the f e d e r a l p o r t i o n of the 

form, w i t h the APD? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: With the page 3? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Yeah. Do you propose t h a t as 

probably an attachment t o E x h i b i t 1 or — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , i f you please. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Say E x h i b i t IA? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Goebel, f o r the record l e t me ask you t o look 

a t what the Examiner has been reviewing and have you 

i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r me, please. 

A. Okay, what I'm looking a t i s page 3 of the APD 
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which was submitted t o the BLM f o r our permit on the 

J i l l s o n Federal Saltwater Disposal Well. 

Q. I s t h i s p a r t of the paperwork t h a t you r e f e r r e d 

t o e a r l i e r when you said you had put the BLM on n o t i c e t h a t 

produced water would be taken o f f lease and put i n t o t h i s 

i n j e c t i o n w e l l or disposal well? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I submit, Mr. Examiner, the 

p o r t i o n of the APD t h a t deals w i t h t h i s t o p i c as an 

addendum t o the e x h i b i t s and have i t introduced as E x h i b i t 

IA. We so move. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: And a t the e a r l i e s t 

convenience w e ' l l make copies of t h a t , and i f y o u ' l l 

provide Mr. Candelaria a copy of t h a t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. With t h a t , you may be 

excused, Mr. Goebel. Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: C a l l a t t h i s time Mr. B i l l Hobbs. 

BILL HOBBS. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Hobbs, would you please s t a t e your name and 
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occupation? 

A. B i l l Hobbs. I'm a petroleum g e o l o g i s t w i t h 

Meridian O i l . 

Q. Mr. Hobbs, on p r i o r occasions have you t e s t i f i e d 

before the D i v i s i o n as a petroleum g e o l o g i s t ? 

A. No, I have not. 

Q. Summarize your education, s i r . 

A. I graduated from Oregon State U n i v e r s i t y i n 1965 

w i t h a bachelor's degree i n geology. Also from Oregon 

State i n 1967 I graduated w i t h a master's degree i n 

geology. 

Q. Summarize your employment experience. 

A. I n i t i a l l y I went t o work f o r Mobil O i l 

Corporation, and since t h a t time I've worked f o r v a r i o u s 

o i l and gas companies i n the US and have been w i t h Meridian 

the l a s t seven years. 

Q. I s i t your geologic r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o review the 

geologic data w i t h regards t o the J i l l s o n Federal Saltwater 

Disposal Well Number 1? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Have you made t h a t review? 

A. Yes, I d i d make t h a t review. 

Q. And based upon t h a t review, have you reached 

c e r t a i n conclusions and opinions concerning t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n ? 
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A. Yes, I have. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, we tender Mr. Hobbs 

as an expert petroleum g e o l o g i s t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Hobbs i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) Mr. Hobbs, l e t me have you 

give us the geologic s e t t i n g i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area, and 

l e t ' s f i n d a type l o g or a sample t h a t you would l i k e t o 

use so we can i l l u s t r a t e t o the Examiner the r e l a t i o n s h i p 

of the various formations from the surface down t o the 

Entrada. 

What do you have a v a i l a b l e t h a t we might look at? 

A. I brought an e x h i b i t , a composite type l o g I put 

together. I made t h i s from three d i f f e r e n t w e l l s i n the 

south h a l f of Section 8, Township 24 North, Range 3 West, 

Rio A r r i b a County. 

Not a l l of the w e l l s logged s t r a t i g r a p h i c a l l y the 

whole s e c t i o n , which i s why I had t o put t h r e e d i f f e r e n t 

logs together, i n c l u d i n g the W.O. Hughes Number 6 Well, 

which Mobil d r i l l e d i n 1984 down through the Entrada. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And these are not p a r t of the e x h i b i t book. 

Q. We w i l l mark them as an e x h i b i t t h a t supplements 

your geologic p r e s e n t a t i o n . I'm going t o mark t h a t as 

E x h i b i t 5A; i s t h a t a l l r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. You're s o f t spoken, Mr. Hobbs. You're going t o 

have t o speak up f o r us. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Do you have two copies? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Why don't you hold on t o one and hand me one? 

Are they both color-coded i n the same fashion? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. I'm going t o hand the Examiner t h i s composite l o g 

and have you take your copy, then, and l e t ' s discuss the 

i n f o r m a t i o n on here t h a t ' s of importance t o you. 

A. As I st a t e d e a r l i e r , t h i s i s a composite l o g . 

The f i r s t p o r t i o n of the l o g — 

Q. Let's t a l k about — 

A. — t h i s i s a geophysical l o g . 

Q. Let's t a l k about the composite. Are you 

s a t i s f i e d t h a t you have taken p o r t i o n s of r e l i a b l e logs and 

selected them so t h a t t h i s i s a t y p i c a l r e p r e s e n t a t i o n of 

what w e ' l l f i n d when we d r i l l t h i s w e l l a t t h i s l o c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . F i r s t — 

A. Excuse me, even though there i s a 200-foot 

s t r a t i g r a p h i c gap between 3100 f e e t and 33 00 f e e t , I looked 

a t o f f s e t logs, and t h a t i s a shale s e c t i o n , and i t would 

be represented i n the proposed J i l l s o n Federal l o g . 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's go t o the bottom of the l o g . 

Let's f i n d the proposed i n j e c t i o n i n t e r v a l i n the Entrada. 

Define f o r us on t h i s composite log what you a n t i c i p a t e t o 

be the top of the Entrada as you've shown i t . 

A. Okay, f i r s t l e t me i d e n t i f y where t h i s p o r t i o n of 

the l o g came from. This p o r t i o n of the l o g , from 7070 f e e t 

down t o the bottom of the log a t 8700 f e e t , i s taken from 

the Mobil production W.O. Hughes Number 6 Well, which was 

d r i l l e d i n the southeast quarter of Section 8, 24 North, 3 

West, so i t ' s about a 3/8 of a mile southeast o f f s e t t o our 

proposed l o c a t i o n . 

This i s the only w e l l i n the township t h a t d i d 

penetrate the Entrada formation, and we, a f t e r r eviewing a 

number of logs w e l l outside t h i s area, f e l t t h a t i t was 

very r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of both the s t r a t i g r a p h y and the rock 

type t h a t we would get — encounter i n the Entrada, which 

occurs on t h i s composite l o g . 

The top of the Entrada i s a t 8400 f e e t , and the 

bottom of the Entrada formation where i t ' s i n contact w i t h 

the Chinle formation i s a t approximately 8640 f e e t on t h i s 

l o g . 

Q. W i t h i n t h i s area, i s the Entrada known t o be 

hydrocarbon-productive? 

A. There have been w e l l s t h a t have had shows, but 

f o r the most p a r t a l l the w e l l s w i t h i n a f i v e - t o w n s h i p area 
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around t h i s w e l l have t e s t e d water, s a l t water. 

Q. What i s your geologic opinion about the 

p r o b a b i l i t y of encountering hydrocarbons i n the Entrada a t 

t h i s l o c a t i o n ? 

A. At t h i s l o c a t i o n , I would say there's a — of 

encountering hydrocarbons? 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. I would say a less than one-percent chance of 

encountering hydrocarbons i n even a — subeconomic 

q u a n t i t i e s . 

Q. I n c e r t a i n areas of the Basin, I t h i n k the 

Entrada could be characterized as f r e s h water. I n other 

words, i t would have t o t a l dissolved s o l i d s w i t h i n the 

range allowed by the State Engineer t o be c l a s s i f i e d as 

f r e s h water? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s t r u e i n the — much f u r t h e r south of 

where we are. What the State Engineer allows as f r e s h 

water i s t o t a l dissolved s o l i d s of 10,000 p a r t s per m i l l i o n 

or l e s s . 

Approximately 30 miles south of our l o c a t i o n , 

s t r u c t u r a l l y updip on the Chaco slope, there are f i v e 

f i e l d s of produced o i l and r e l a t i v e l y f r e s h water, even by 

the State Engineer's d e f i n i t i o n , i n Medio f i e l d , southwest 

Medio f i e l d , Snake Eyes and Paper Wash. 

As you come closer — producing f i e l d s t h a t come 
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closer t o our location, I believe i t ' s Paper Wash f i e l d , 

which i s s t i l l 20 miles south of us, updip closer t o 

outcrop, where the fresh water would enter the formation, 

the produced water i n that f i e l d i s 11,000 parts per 

m i l l i o n . 

Q. Do you have a geologic opinion about the 

p r o b a b i l i t y of encountering water i n the Entrada at t h i s 

location that would be c l a s s i f i e d as fresh? 

A. Again, I would s t i l l put that at less than one or 

two percent. 

Q. When we look at the geology i n the Entrada, why 

have you chosen the Entrada as a probable candidate f o r the 

i n j e c t i o n of t h i s produced water? 

A. I n other parts of the northern part of the basin, 

the Entrada has been successfully used by a number of 

operators f o r years as a very successful water i n j e c t i o n 

zone. 

We eyed t h i s formation as we came down i n t o our 

area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . We picked the Entrada because of 

the very t h i c k volume of reservoir or sand at t h i s 

location. The porous and permeable Entrada was 240 feet 

t h i c k . 

Also because of i t s depth, 8400 feet, we're down 

below a l l the known and proven producing formations such as 

the Dakota formation and Pictured C l i f f s , which produce i n 
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t h i s area, and also t h a t puts us approximately 82 00 f e e t 

below a l l of these surface water w e l l s . 

So through the 8400 f e e t , probably, I would say, 

65 t o 70 percent of the e n t i r e s t r a t i g r a p h i c s e c t i o n would 

be a shale s e c t i o n , which would give us a good e f f e c t i v e 

geologic seal from surface formations. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the p o i n t i n the formations 

t h a t Mobil has chosen t o dispose of produced water i n t h e i r 

d i s p o s a l well? 

A. Yes, my understanding, i n i t i a l l y , they s t a r t e d 

disposing of t h i s water — You're r e f e r r i n g t o the water i n 

Section 9, I beli e v e . 

Q. Yes, the L i n d r i t h B 25 Number 1 Well. 

A. Same township. They i n i t i a l l y s t a r t e d i n j e c t i n g 

produced water i n t o the Mesaverde formation, which on t h i s 

composite l o g occurs — the top of which occurs a t 

approximately 4668 f e e t . 

For some reason, they have — our understanding 

i s , they have abandoned t h a t zone as an i n j e c t i o n zone and 

now are i n j e c t i n g water i n the Chacra sands, which on t h i s 

composite l o g occur a t — the top of which occurs a t 3915 

f e e t , and there's two very t h i n Chacra sands t h e r e t h a t 

look l i k e composite. They might be 15 f e e t t h i c k , which we 

t h i n k — which again i s the reason we p r e f e r r e d our 

l o c a t i o n and the Entrada l o c a t i o n as lo o k i n g a t a la r g e 
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enough formation t o take the volume over a very long term 

t h a t we're proposing f o r the J i l l s o n s i t e . 

Q. When you look a t the geologic i n f o r m a t i o n i n t h i s 

area, what i s your opinion of the g r e a t e s t depth of f r e s h 

water t h a t i s being u t i l i z e d i n t h i s area? 

A. I would have t o go by the water w e l l records, 

which my understanding — and I guess we don't know t h i s 

f o r sure — the Candelarias' w e l l s produced from — or have 

f r e s h water down t o a depth of approximately 2 00 f e e t , 250 

f e e t . 

The top of t h i s composite l o g , which i s a 

spontaneous p o t e n t i a l and r e s i s t i v i t y l o g , s t a r t s a t 370 

f e e t , and the sands t h a t we see i n the San Jose fo r m a t i o n 

on here, i t looks l i k e they're s t a r t i n g t o get i n t o the 

brac k i s h water zones. So — 

Q. I f you had — 

A. — I would say the f r e s h water would be very 

shallow i n t h i s area and confined t o the upper p a r t of the 

San Jose formation. 

Q. Do you know what has been the custom and p r a c t i c e 

i n t h i s area i n terms of operators where t h e y ' l l set the 

surface casing s t r i n g f o r these producing wells? 

A. Yes, according t o the State Engineer's approval 

and the NMOCD, operators have g e n e r a l l y set surface casing 

down below known freshwater zones, which i n t h i s case 
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surface casing would be set down t o or below 3 00 f e e t . 

Q. Based upon your geologic study, do you have an 

opi n i o n as t o where you would recommend the bottom of the 

surface casing s t r i n g be set i n t h i s d i s p o s a l well? 

A. I t h i n k i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l we have enough 

o f f s e t w e l l s t h a t seem t o — through a number of years of 

prod u c t i o n , have provided adequate p r o t e c t i o n of the 

surface water r i g h t s and s a l i n i t y . I r e a l l y t h i n k 300, 350 

f e e t would be most adequate. 

Q. Okay. When we look a t the e x h i b i t book behind 

E x h i b i t Tab Number 5, there's a couple of logs. What are 

we l o o k i n g a t here? 

A. This i s a type l o g . I t ' s from the — The two 

geophysical logs are from the W.O. Hughes Number 6 w e l l 

t h a t Mobil O i l d r i l l e d and logged i n September of 1983. 

They're merely blow-ups of the l o g used on the bottom of 

the small composite lo g t h a t we've been t a l k i n g from. 

The geophysical l o g on the l e f t i s a dual 

i n d u c t i o n l a t e r a l l o g . These are normal t o o l s run i n the 

normal o i l f i e l d t o evaluate subsurface formations. 

The geophysical l o g on the r i g h t - h a n d side i s a 

de n s i t y compensated neutron l o g which, i n combination, we 

use t o evaluate r e s e r v o i r and non-reservoir rocks i n the 

subsurface. 

This p a r t i c u l a r l o g i s k i n d of a blow-up of the 
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composite l o g . I t shows the top of the Entrada f o r m a t i o n , 

Entrada — the only sandstones t h a t approximate 8400 f e e t , 

extending down t o a depth of 8642 f e e t , where the Entrada 

sands s i t on top of the interbedded sandstones and shales 

of the Chinle. 

These sandstones and shales would pr o v i d e a good 

f l o o r s e a l , we be l i e v e , f o r the Entrada as an i n j e c t i o n 

zone. 

And the Summerville T o d i l t o shales and 

interbedded limestones and anhydrites, which extend on t h i s 

l o g from 8338 f e e t down t o the top of the Entrada a t 8400 

f e e t , we f e e l provides a very adequate top seal f o r the 

s a l t w a t e r d isposal zone. 

Q. As p a r t of your study, have you looked f o r any 

evidence of open f a u l t s or other h y d r o l o g i c connections by 

which d i s p o s a l f l u i d s i n t e r j e c t e d i n t o the Entrada could 

migrate i n t o the shallow freshwater sands? 

A. Yes, I have. I've examined a l l of the w e l l logs 

i n the — b a s i c a l l y w i t h i n the area on the map marked 

E x h i b i t Number 3. I've looked a t a l l the logs i n s i d e of 

the red square, and I have — and b a s i c a l l y we had 

subsurface logs on a l l these w e l l s , not j u s t the a v a i l a b l e 

ones. We do have very good records. 

I looked a t surface geologic maps and d i d not 

f i n d any evidence of f a u l t i n g or extensive f r a c t u r i n g t h a t 
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would a l l o w the m i g r a t i o n of these f l u i d s up towards the 

surface. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. Hobbs. We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of h i s E x h i b i t 5 and 

h i s E x h i b i t 5A. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t 5 and E x h i b i t 5A w i l l 

be admitted i n t o evidence at t h i s time. Thank you, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Candelaria, I ' l l a l l o w you 

t o ask Mr. Hobbs any questions p e r t i n e n t t o h i s testimony 

today as a g e o l o g i s t . 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: 

Q. The only question t h a t I could p o s s i b l y have 

would be — i s , what assurance can you give us w i t h water 

w e l l s i n t h a t area t h a t those f l u i d s w i l l not come up? 

A. I t h i n k t h a t question can be more adequately 

answered by Brian A u l t , who's the engineer who's going t o 

f o l l o w me, and — when he t a l k s about the cementing 

procedures. 

As f a r as any f a u l t s or f r a c t u r e s , I t h i n k , away 

from the wellbore, on these f l u i d s coming up, again, 

because of our depth and so many t h i c k shales between the 

Entrada formation and up t o the surface, most of those 

f a u l t s aren't going t o go up through the very young 

formations t h a t you take the water out o f . So... 
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Of course, we can't o f f e r any guarantees, but I 

f e e l t h a t t h i s whole s e c t i o n i n here would be more s u i t a b l e 

than t r y i n g t o i n j e c t water i n t o , say, a much shallower 

zone. So we ki n d of have t r i p l e p r o t e c t i o n , i f you w i l l . 

Q. I n c i d e n t a l l y , the water w e l l , the one p a r t i c u l a r 

water w e l l t h a t we're t a l k i n g about i s 270 — 370 f e e t . 

A. 370 feet? Okay. 

Q. So t h a t might be w e l l known by — 

A. Yeah, we were going t o get together w i t h you and 

see i f we could e i t h e r f i n d out the depth or, i f you d i d n ' t 

know the depth, maybe measure the w e l l t o f i n d out how deep 

i t was. 

Q. Well, not t r y i n g t o be redundant, but t h a t ' s the 

t h i n g t h a t k i n d of upset us, t h a t you f o l k s , you as 

Meridian or you guys as Meridian, d i d not contact us and 

get w i t h us and ask us questions p e r t a i n i n g t o t h i s 

s i t u a t i o n . You know, t h a t ' s where we're coming from. 

MR. DONALD CANDELARIA: As a matter of f a c t , the 

way t h a t we found out was when BLM t o l d us about t h a t 

i n j e c t i o n w e l l t h a t you guys were planning. You d i d n ' t — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I don't want t o argue w i t h the 

Candelarias about t h i s issue, Mr. Examiner. I ' l l be happy 

t o engage them i n a moment, but I don't t h i n k i t ' s 

a p p r o p r i a t e f o r t h i s witness. 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: Well — 
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EXAMINER STOGNER: I concur. I s th e r e any 

questions of t h i s witness? 

Okay, i f not, l e t ' s take a — I'm s o r r y , Mr. 

Chavez? 

MR. CHAVEZ: Frank Chavez, O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n , Aztec O f f i c e . 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CHAVEZ: 

Q. I s i t p a r t of your d u t i e s t o — i n reviewing 

a p p l i c a t i o n s i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area, and Meridian 

a c t i v i t i e s , t o understand the hydrology of the area and how 

t h a t might be a f f e c t e d by Meridian a c t i v i t i e s ? 

A. The hydrology as p e r t a i n s t o the shallow — 

Q. S p e c i f i c a l l y shallow groundwater, yes. 

A. I n general, I would say no. And we g e n e r a l l y 

r e f e r — or defer — t o the State Engineer's o f f i c e , or 

s t a t e agencies, f o r t h a t k i n d of i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. 

A. I t ' s not common p r a c t i c e f o r us t o do surface 

h y d r o l o g i c a l studies. 

Q. We're t a l k i n g about groundwater, shallow 

groundwater hydrology, how t h a t might be a f f e c t e d . That's 

what I was t r y i n g t o address, t o see whether or not as your 

geologic d u t i e s i n t h i s area you had t o understand the 

shallow groundwater i n , f o r example, the p e r m i t t i n g 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
(505) 984-2244 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

47 

processes, casing design process and a l l , f o r the Meridian 

a c t i v i t i e s t h a t might have an e f f e c t on shallow 

groundwater. 

A. Only i n s o f a r — My r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s would be t o 

i d e n t i f y b a s i c a l l y from subsurface logs, such as we've 

e x h i b i t e d or used here, the existence of freshwater 

a q u i f e r s and then work w i t h the — and i d e n t i f y any other 

p o t e n t i a l d r i l l i n g hazards, e i t h e r a t the surface or on the 

way down t o TD, and work w i t h the engineering team and the 

d r i l l i n g department t o make sure t h a t we are s e t t i n g 

surface casings deep enough and our intermediate s t r i n g s 

down — casing s t r i n g s a l l the way down t o t o t a l depth. 

Q. I n order t o i d e n t i f y groundwater i n the area, 

would — i s there a consis t e n t process you go through 

besides l o o k i n g a t logs t o i d e n t i f y p o t e n t i a l groundwater? 

A. Probably one of the f i r s t sources we look a t i s , 

p a r t i c u l a r l y i n the San Juan Basin where most of our 

d r i l l i n g a c t i v i t y occurs, we look a t what's been done by 

previous operators. So we look a t the casing designs, 

where they set the surface casing on p r e - e x i s t i n g w e l l s . 

So t h a t ' s k i n d of d e f e r r i n g back t o — I f t h a t process was 

approved, you know, unless we see something g l a r i n g wrong 

w i t h t h a t , t h a t d e c i s i o n , then oftentimes where we decide 

t o set casing i s d i c t a t e d by what was acceptable a t a l l the 

o f f s e t producing w e l l s . 
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MR. CHAVEZ: Okay, thank you. That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. Chavez. 

I have no other questions of Mr. Hobbs a t t h i s 

time. 

Let's take an extended 3 0-minute recess a t t h i s 

p o i n t , maybe grab some snacks. We'll reconvene — Let's 

make i t an even 1:15. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 12:43 p.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 1:28 p.m.) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Hearing w i l l come t o order. 

Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, d u r i n g the break Mr. 

Chavez advised me t h a t he had t a l k e d t o the Candelarias 

about the Meridian A p p l i c a t i o n , and had them convey t o him 

t h e i r concerns. 

The r e s u l t of t h a t conversation was some 

recommendations from Mr. Chavez. The Candelarias and I 

have taken those recommendations and have s t i p u l a t e d as t o 

a s o l u t i o n t h a t addresses t h e i r concerns, and I would l i k e 

t o make t h a t r e p r e s e n t a t i o n t o you now on behalf of 

Meridian and then l e t Mr. Candelaria v e r i f y i f t h a t i s h i s 

understanding of the agreement. 

F i r s t , t here i s a question about the depth of the 

Candelaria's deepest freshwater w e l l i n t h i s area. 

Apparently there's another domestic w e l l i n close 
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p r o x i m i t y , but i t i s shallower. The one we're t a l k i n g 

about t h a t ' s located on the e x h i b i t s , Mr. Paul Candelaria 

b e l i e v e s , i s 371 f e e t . 

What we propose t o do w i t h h i s agreement i s t h a t 

we w i l l measure the depth of t h a t domestic w e l l , we w i l l 

n o t i f y the Candelarias so t h a t they may be present and 

witness t h a t measurement. Based upon the r e s u l t s of t h a t 

measurement, then, Meridian i s committed t o s e t t i n g the 

surface s t r i n g 200 [ s i c ] f e e t below the depth of t h a t 

freshwater w e l l . For example, i f i t ' s confirmed t o be 371, 

we w i l l set a t 471, and then cement from the bottom of t h a t 

surface casing s t r i n g t o surface. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Did you say 100 or 2 00 f o o t 

deeper? 

MR. KELLAHIN: One hundred f e e t — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: One hundred f e e t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: — below the deepest measured 

depth of the freshwater w e l l . Mr. Chavez says t h a t i t ' s 

the p r a c t i c e i n the D i s t r i c t O f f i c e t o r e q u i r e o n l y 50 

f e e t , but we're going t o double t h a t distance and go t o 100 

f e e t below. 

I n a d d i t i o n , we have agreed t h a t we w i l l sample 

t h a t freshwater w e l l every s i x months and t h a t w e ' l l have 

the water sample analyzed f o r t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s , and 

we w i l l send a copy of t h a t a nalysis t o the Candelarias f o r 
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t h e i r i n f o r m a t i o n . 

That s t i p u l a t i o n , then, addresses the concerns 

t h a t the Candelarias have w i t h regards t o t h i s i n j e c t i o n 

w e l l . 

Mr. Donald Candelaria has asked f o r an absolute 

guarantee w i t h regards t o p r o t e c t i n g the q u a l i t y of the 

freshwater w e l l , and my c l i e n t i s unable t o commit t o an 

absolute guarantee. 

But other than the guarantee issue, which we have 

refused, the other issues, I b e l i e v e , are i n agreement and, 

i t ' s my understanding, s a t i s f y t h e i r o b j e c t i o n s before you 

as t o t h i s case. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

Mr. Candelaria, or e i t h e r one of you gentlemen, 

do you have anything f u r t h e r t o add? 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: No, I don't b e l i e v e we do. 

I t h i n k t h a t our concern has been taken care o f . We're 

s a t i s f i e d . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: A l l r i g h t . 

MR. PAUL CANDELARIA: Thank you. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I assume you gentlemen 

probably want t o s t i c k around f o r the remainder of the 

hearing. You're more than welcome t o . 

Okay, w i t h t h a t , Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I've c a l l e d Mr. 
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Brian A u l t , who i s an engineer w i t h Meridian. He and 

others prepared the C-108 f i l i n g , and we would l i k e t o 

review t h a t subject matter w i t h you. 

BRIAN AULT. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. For the record, Mr. A u l t , would you please s t a t e 

your name and occupation? 

A. Brian A u l t , production engineer f o r Meridian O i l . 

Q. Mr. A u l t , on p r i o r occasions have you t e s t i f i e d 

as a production engineer? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Summarize f o r us your education. 

A. I received a bachelor of science degree i n 

petroleum engineering i n 1986 from M a r i e t t a College. I've 

worked f i v e years as d i s t r i c t engineer w i t h the Western 

Company i n s t i m u l a t i o n and cementing surfaces, 14 months 

w i t h the Southern Ute Tribe as an o p e r a t i o n a l engineer, and 

a year w i t h Meridian O i l . 

Q. I d e n t i f y the other engineers t h a t a s s i s t e d you i n 

the p r e p a r a t i o n of the C-108 t h a t was submitted t o the 

D i v i s i o n f o r t h i s case. 

A. Sean Wolverton, the r e s e r v o i r engineer, seated 
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back t h e r e , and there was some in p u t from our d r i l l i n g 

engineer, Dan Vages [ p h o n e t i c ] , who's not i n attendance. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . Have you reviewed and agreed 

upon a procedure f o r d r i l l i n g the disposal w e l l ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. As p a r t of your study of the requirements 

necessary f o r approval, have you looked a t and reviewed a l l 

the d e t a i l s f o r the C-108? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , we tender Mr. A u l t as 

an expert production engineer. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. A u l t i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) Let's f i n d the double c i r c l e 

map, the area of review, behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 3, Mr. 

A u l t . Have you got that ? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. When we look a t the area of review, the h a l f -

m i l e - r a d i u s c i r c l e , w i t h i n t h a t area d i d you f i n d 

i n f o r m a t i o n f o r any other w e l l t h a t had ever been d r i l l e d 

t o or through the Entrada? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. How many w e l l s d i d you f i n d ? 

A. Only one w e l l . 

Q. Where i s t h a t well? 

A. I t ' s i n the — I bel i e v e the northeast of — or 
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the northwest of the southeast. I t ' s the W.O. Hughes 

Number 6. 

Q. I s there a schematic of t h a t w e l l somewhere i n 

t h i s package of e x h i b i t s ? 

A. Yes, there i s . 

Q. Help us f i n d i t . 

A. I t was submitted as p a r t of a C-108 behind 

E x h i b i t 1. 

Q. The C-108 has got some page numbers on the lower 

r i g h t - h a n d corner? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What page number do we need t o look at? 

A. Page number 2 2. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Give us a quick summary of the Hughes 

Number 6 w e l l . I t was d r i l l e d i n i t i a l l y f o r what purpose? 

A. I t was d r i l l e d i n i t i a l l y t o go t o the Entrada 

for m a t i o n , r e a l i z i n g w hile they were d r i l l i n g i t t h a t the 

Dakota i n t e r v a l was the primary producer. 

The w e l l was d r i l l e d , surface pipe was set and 

cemented t o surface, intermediate s t r i n g was set and 

cemented t o surface, and then they d r i l l e d a l l the way i n t o 

the Entrada formation. And at t h a t time i t was so wet, 

w i t h no hydrocarbon show, whatsoever t h a t they decided t o 

plug and abandon t h a t s e c t i o n of the hole and move up and 

set t h e i r l o n g - s t r i n g pipe t o the bottom of the Dakota 
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i n t e r v a l . 

Q. And then what d i d they do? 

A. At t h a t time, a f t e r they d r i l l e d out, tagged the 

cement t o know where t h e i r cement was a t the bottom, they 

set t h e i r l o n g - s t r i n g pipe, d i d a two-stage cement j o b , 

c i r c u l a t e d cement t o surface on both stages, p e r f o r a t e d the 

Dakota i n t e r v a l , and i t i s c u r r e n t l y a Dakota producing 

w e l l . 

Q. How o l d i s t h i s well? Do you have an 

approximation? 

A. I t was done i n 1983. 

Q. Have you s a t i s f i e d y o u r s e l f t h a t t h i s w e l l has 

been p r o p e r l y plugged out of and i s o l a t e d from the Entrada? 

A. Yes, I have. A f t e r checking the w e l l f i l e and 

the i n f o r m a t i o n and the — c a l c u l a t i n g the cement volumes 

and the hole s i z e , I was s a t i s f i e d t h a t the amount of mud, 

cement mud and cement t h a t was placed i n the hole 

adequately seals o f f the Entrada from any p o s s i b l e f l u i d 

m i g r a t i o n . 

Q. I s there a c a l c u l a t i o n or a measured top f o r the 

cement plugs? 

A. They d i d both. When they decided how much cement 

t o pump, they made t h a t o f f of a volume c a l c u l a t i o n . And 

then when they d r i l l e d out the cement t o set t h e i r long-

s t r i n g pipe, they tagged the cement, d r i l l e d out 91 f e e t of 
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hard cement, and knew they had good cement below t h a t . 

Q. Do you have an engineering o p i n i o n as t o whether 

or not the Hughes 6 Well could be a conduit t o allow 

i n j e c t i o n f l u i d s from the Entrada t o migrate through t h a t 

w e llbore somewhere else? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. What's your opinion? 

A. I t would be nearly impossible f o r any f l u i d t o 

migrate and use t h a t wellbore as a conduit, based on the 

f a c t t h a t the l o n g - s t r i n g pipe was cemented t o surface w i t h 

a competent cement j o b , and t h a t the Entrada zone has been 

plugged and abandoned a p p r o p r i a t e l y . 

Q. Okay. Do you have any engineering evidence t o 

cause you t o conclude t h a t there's any open f a u l t i n g or 

hyd r o l o g i c connections between the Entrada and any of the 

shallow freshwater sands? 

A. No, I d i d n ' t see anything. 

Q. Find me the schematic t h a t shows the J i l l s o n 

d i s p o s a l w e l l . 

A. I t would be page 13 of t h a t same s e c t i o n , same 

E x h i b i t . 

Q. Just i n f r o n t of the green tab — or I mean the 

green page? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay, l e t ' s t a l k about the d r i l l i n g procedure. 
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Give us a quick summary of how you're going t o d r i l l t h i s 

w e l l , what type of d r i l l i n g f l u i d s or mediums are used from 

the surface through the freshwater sources. And l e t ' s 

assume f o r purposes of t h a t question i t ' s from 3 00 — from 

100 f e e t down t o 370-plus, a l l r i g h t ? 

A. Okay. The hole w i l l be a 12-1/4-inch hole. 

We'll use water and bentonite, and the be n t o n i t e w i l l be 

used t o maintain the hole i n t e g r i t y and keep the water 

c i r c u l a t i n g and b r i n g the r e t u r n s t o the surface. And 

t h a t ' s the only f l u i d s t h a t w i l l be used t o 100 f e e t below 

the depth of Mr. Candelaria's w e l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Any reasonable p r o b a b i l i t y t h a t 

hydrocarbons would be introduced i n t o the f r e s h sand 

a q u i f e r s by t h a t a c t i v i t y ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Having gotten past the freshwater sands, you 

d r i l l t o t o t a l depth, get your w e l l , and then what? 

A. We have proposed a three-stage cement j o b , 

s e t t i n g a stage t o o l j u s t below the Ojo Alamo, another 

stage t o o l i n the Mancos a t 5703, and w e ' l l pump 

approximately — the c a l c u l a t i o n s r i g h t now are 

approximately 2100 f e e t of cement. Those w i l l be checked 

by c a l i p e r , and then w e ' l l pump a c e r t a i n amount of excess 

cement over c a l i p e r i n an e f f o r t t o c i r c u l a t e cement on a l l 

t h r e e stages back t o the surface. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . You're t a l k i n g about the long s t r i n g 

i s c i r c u l a t e d back t o the surface — 

A. That's c o r r e c t , the 7-inch pipe w i l l have cement 

across the back side from TD t o surface. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Go back and t e l l me what you're going 

t o do about s e t t i n g the surface s t r i n g . 

A. Okay, w e ' l l set — I n t h a t 12-1/4-inch hole, 

w e ' l l set 9-5/8-inch casing t o t h a t depth, cement i t back 

t o surface as w e l l . 

Q. And i t w i l l be con s i s t e n t w i t h our commitment 

w i t h the Candelarias about the s e t t i n g depth f o r t h a t 

casing s t r i n g ? 

A. Yes, i t w i l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And y o u ' l l cement up the back si d e , 

then, f o r t h a t surface s t r i n g ? 

A. Yes, we w i l l . 

Q. Once you do t h a t , what's your engineering o p i n i o n 

about the i n t e g r i t y of t h a t wellbore? 

A. Given the e n t i r e scenario of s e t t i n g the surface 

pipe and the l o n g - s t r i n g pipe and having competent cement 

jobs behind, any nearby a q u i f e r s w i l l be adequately 

p r o t e c t e d from any f l u i d m i g r a t i o n or hydrocarbon m i g r a t i o n 

from t h i s wellbore. 

Q. How do you measure or determine the i n t e g r i t y of 

the cement bond? 
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A. We're re q u i r e d t o do a mechanical i n t e g r i t y t e s t 

on the back side. We'll set a 4-1/2-inch t u b i n g j u s t above 

the Entrada i n t e r v a l , put a Baker packer i n the hole and 

f i l l the back side w i t h a c o r r o s i o n - i n h i b i t i n g f l u i d . 

And a t t h a t time w e ' l l do a mechanical i n t e g r i t y 

t e s t , apply pressure t o t h a t back side, and i t ' s allowed t o 

lose 10 percent or less pressure over the t e s t i n g p e r i o d . 

And i f t h a t t e s t i s successful, we have adequately shown 

the i n t e g r i t y of our back side. 

Q. What then do you do? 

A. At t h a t time w e ' l l run a st e p - r a t e t e s t on the 

Entrada i n t e r v a l t o set i n j e c t i o n pressures f o r the Entrada 

i n t e r v a l , surface i n j e c t i o n of pressures f o r t h a t i n t e r v a l . 

Q. D i v i s i o n g u i d e l i n e s provide t h a t y o u ' l l have an 

i n i t i a l surface l i m i t a t i o n pressure e q u i v a l e n t t o .2 p . s . i . 

per f o o t of depth from the surface t o the top of 

p e r f o r a t i o n . Are you aware of that? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And then they normally provide a 

procedure where you can o b t a i n increases i n surface 

pressures, based upon step-rate t e s t s . Are you also aware 

of t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i s your a n t i c i p a t e d p o i n t ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. Where you w i l l get the water t h a t you propose t o 

put i n the disposal well? 

A. The produced water from nearby leases t o the 

J i l l s o n f e d e r a l lease. 

Q. What k i n d of production comes from those nearby 

leases? 

A. I t ' s gas and water out of F r u i t l a n d , F r u i t l a n d 

Coal, P i c t u r e d C l i f f s , Mesaverde, Gallup and Dakota 

i n t e r v a l s . 

Q. Does the C-108 contain copies of water a n a l y s i s 

of the produced water from each of the formations t h a t you 

plan t o take water from? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. And do you have — Well, you don't have a water 

sample on the Entrada y e t , do you? 

A. No. 

Q. Do you plan t o take a water sample on the Entrada 

when t h i s w e l l i s d r i l l e d — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — and submit t h a t t o the Di v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Are you going t o run any k i n d of 

c o m p a t i b i l i t y t e s t on the water? 

A. A l l of the f l u i d s w i l l be t e s t e d f o r 

c o m p a t i b i l i t i e s , and the TDS of t h a t f l u i d w i l l be checked. 
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Q. How do you monitor the w e l l d u r i n g i t s produce — 

or i t s i n j e c t i o n p e r i o d t o determine i f you've got any 

leaks i n the t u b u l a r setup of the well? 

A. We continuously w i l l be monitoring backside 

pressure above the packer, so i f at any p o i n t the t u b i n g or 

the packer were t o f a i l , an alarm would be a c t i v a t e d and 

i n j e c t i o n operations would cease. 

Q. Does the C-108 contain a water a n a l y s i s taken 

from a sample of the Candelaria t h a t we've t a l k e d about 

e a r l i e r today? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Okay, i t ' s i n the book here somewhere? 

A. Yes, i t ' s a t the very back of the C-108, page 44. 

Q. What's the necessity t o have t h i s d i s p o s a l w e l l 

l o c a t e d where you propose t o put i t ? 

A. I t ' s s t r a t e g i c a l l y placed, as Van mentioned 

e a r l i e r , t o our operations i n the southeast p o r t i o n of the 

San Juan Basin. There i s e x i s t i n g roads t o t h i s l o c a t i o n , 

so we minimize the impact there. 

And as f a r as a choice, f o r t h i s l o c a t i o n , the 

Entrada was — we have some i n f o r m a t i o n on the Entrada from 

the W.O. Hughes w e l l , and we f e l t t h a t the Entrada would 

both s a t i s f y our long-term needs f o r water d i s p o s a l and 

t h a t we would have the capacity there t o do such. 

Q. Any engineering evidence t h a t the Entrada a t t h i s 
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l o c a t i o n i s productive of hydrocarbons? 

A. No, there's not. 

Q. I n your opinion, would approval of t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n provide a means by which you might dispose of 

produced water i n an economic fashion but do so i n a way 

t h a t w i l l p r o t e c t freshwater sources? 

A. Yes, t h i s was very much a p a r t of our concern as 

we looked a t many a l t e r n a t i v e s t h a t seemed t o be the most 

environmentally sound choice t h a t we could make, as w e l l as 

the capacity. 

Q. With regards t o the surface use f o r the d i s p o s a l , 

you meet or exceed a l l the requirements of the D i v i s i o n , 

the BLM and any other r e g u l a t o r y agency w i t h regards t o 

surface use? 

A. Yes, we do. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. A u l t . 

We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of h i s C-108 as p a r t of 

the attachments t o E x h i b i t 1. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Which e x h i b i t again? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t ' s E x h i b i t 1, Mr. Examiner. I 

t h i n k i t ' s already — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: A l l r i g h t , the remainder of 

E x h i b i t 1 w i l l be submitted i n t o evidence, or i n i t s 

e n t i r e t y . 
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A c t u a l l y , I have no questions of Mr. A u l t a t t h i s 

time, so... 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes our p r e s e n t a t i o n , 

Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Then w i t h t h a t , Case Number 

11,042 w i l l be taken under advisement. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

1:48 p.m.) 

ii? • that the foregoing is 
-f the proceedings in 

c-iry^: Case No. 

, Examiner 

OH Conservation Division 
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